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Vendor Questions and Answers 
RFP OAM16038S 

 
1. Can teaming with a packaged office contract be used for the bid response? 

Answer: That is the decision of the Offeror. 
        
2. Should the quote include the entire suite or only items with black hash marks through them? 

Answer: Only the items with the black hash marks. 
3. The following typical drawings were provided in the package, however, they are not 

requested in the pricing matrix.  Are we to provide a price and drawing?  If so, where do you 
want the prices on the matrix? 

a. RE-2 
b. RE-3 
c. WS-1S 
d. WS-2 
e. WS-3 
f. WS-4 
g. WS-6 
h. WS-7T 
i. CR-1T 
j. CR-2T 
k. RT-1T 
l. MP-1 
m. CR-1 
n. CR-2 

Answer: We will be removing the typicals. A revised pricing matrix will be sent in 
an amendment. 

4. RE-1 typical drawing indicates Transitional, however, the price matrix specifies Traditional.  
Should RE-1 be transitional or traditional? 

Answer: Provide pricing per the matrix. RE-1 is traditional, RE-1T is transitional. 

5. Can the panels be attached to the wall? 

Answer: AoC Clarification required. We would recommend no. 

6. Based on the Suite plans, the window section of the panels may be against the wall.  

Answer: Will be adjusted during the design phase. 

7. What is the difference between WS-1 and WS-1S? 

Answer: WS-1 has a curved work surface corner. Ws1S has a straight 90 degree 
corner. 

8. What is the difference between WS-2 and WS-2S? 



Answer: see answer to # 7. 

9. What is the difference between WS-3 and WS-3S? 

Answer: see answer to # 7 

10. What size should be quoted for WS-6? 

Answer: 60”W x 24”D 

11. RT-1T-If you want a price, what size is it?  Is it traditional or transitional style? 

Answer: - There is no RT-1T. 

12. Price Matrix for “All Phases” has line 3 and 6 without a tag reference.  What tag should line 
3 and 6 be? 

Answer: BC- 3 and HTS. See typical sheets in RFP. 

13. The price matrix asks that we price T1 as a 36” dia. and a 42” dia.  Will the matrix be 
updated to allow for two prices to be submitted? 

Answer: Price separately we will add another line in pricing sheet. 

14. Please confirm that T1 should have a disc style metal base as indicated in the price matrix? 

Answer: No metal disc. Transitional leg preferred. 

15. What is the difference between RE-4 and PO-1?  Both appear to be the same size double 
pedestal desk. 

Answer: They are the same unit. 

16. PO-2T and PO-1T in the price matrix request a transitional option, however, the description 
is contradictory to transitional by requiring “raised molding”.  Can confirmation be provided 
as to which style the PO-2T and PO-1T should be quoted? 

Answer: The pricing sheet will be consolidated to include all phases on one sheet.   

17. The price matrix is asking for an RE-1T to be quoted, however, we do not have a typical 
drawing.  Can one be provided? 

Answer:  The pricing sheet will be updated. 

18. Page 8, Section d. work surfaces, #10 and #11 ask the bidders to provide options for the 
corner unit and for sit/stand.  Are you requiring a quote and drawing?  If so, where do you 
want it noted in the price matrix? 

Answer: WS-6 will be added to the pricing matrix. 

19. Page 8, Section b, number 6.  There seems to be a large requirement for data cabling 
capacity.  The specified data capacity requirements are typical requirements for groups or 
agencies whose primary mission is technology based. There is a higher cost associated with 



additional double channel raceways.  Please verify, the requirements are needed within a 
legislative environment.  

Answer: Requirement will remain as is. 

20. Page 11, Section e, Occasional tables request both transitional and traditional options.  Are 
you requiring a quote and drawing?  If so, where do you want the prices noted in the price 
matrix? 

Answer: Transitional leg table only. 

21. Page 10, C.3.2.1 Section a, #1, requires a veneer and HPL option quote.  The price matrix 
does not have a section for the options.  Please provide a revised price matrix. 

Answer: Price veneer only 

22. The pre-proposal Conference and Walk thru may drive more questions.  Can the date to 
submit questions be extended? 
 

Answer: Yes they must be submitted by 4:00PM July 9, 2016 via email to 
james.tiani@mail.house.gov. 

 
23. Should a bidder be selected for the Pilot program, how much time will they be given to 

manufacturer, ship, deliver, and install the product? 
Answer: 8-10 weeks minimum. 

  
24.  Will you accept non-tiled panels which provide better acoustics than tiled panels? 

Answer: Not all systems have to be paneled but all panel systems must be tiled.   
  
25. PO-2:  Would a return width of 50” acceptable?  

Answer: No 
 
26. HTO:  Would a hutch span of the desk only (either 66” or 72”) be acceptable?  

Answer: The hutch will span the length of the desk and needs to be interchangeable 
with spanning the desk and return. 

 
27. RE-1: Would reception station of 80” x 80” be acceptable? 

Answer: No 
 

28. PO-2T: Would a return width of 50” acceptable?  
Answer: No 

 
29. HTO-T: Would a hutch span of the desk only (either 66” or 72”) be acceptable?  

Answer: refer to answer to # 26 
 

30. RE-1T: Would reception station of 80” x 80” be acceptable? 
Answer: No 

  



31. Based on section H.9, Buy American section.  Please confirm if we can submit our 
furniture line INSCAPE which is manufactured in Canada?  

 
Answer: The clause is quite specific, “goods and equipment hereunder shall be of 
growth and manufacture of the United States etc…”.  NO 

 
  

32. At this time we only have one question. In the event of award, will the furniture provided for 
the pilot program be purchased by the House and incorporated into Phase I of the project? 

 Answer: See 6 e of Bailment Agreement. 
 

33. Please clarify the spreadsheet typical tag column and how they correlate with the typical 
drawing tags. This occurs on all 12 phase spreadsheet sheets. A few of them don’t match. For 
example: 

a. RE-1 
  

b. RE-1T- no typical drawing to reference?  
Answer: The pricing sheet will be updated. 

 
As a follow up to the questions submitted earlier, we need clarification on WS-6 and WS- 
7T. We noticed that specs are not listed for these. 
Answer: WS-7T will be removed, WS-6 will be added. 

 
34. Please clarify if holding discounting through-out all phases of this project is 

expected/required. 
Answer: This is the Offerors decision. 

 
35. Please Clarify the option year 1 and 2 spreadsheet and what it entails. 

a.            Is the option 1: first full year 2018? 
b.            Is the option 2: second full year 2020? 

Answer: See Section F1 and F.2 of RFP. 
  

36. Please clarify which panels in the WS-1 & WS-5 Typical are to be powered & provide the 
number of duplex receptacles required per workstation. 

Answer: Power should be in the panels that house the overheads. 3 duplexes per      
station. 

 
37. T-1 Table – please clarify whether this table should be veneer or laminate finish; if veneer, 

please provide the edge detail preferred. 
Answer: Veneer. Edged TBD 

 
38. Please confirm that pricing is to be based on the suite layout provided on Attachment 2 

(Typical Pricing) and is to include only those items marked with item codes and hash 
marked? 
Answer:  Refer to answer to # 2 

 



39. Please confirm that no pricing is to be included for items not shown in the Suite Drawings 
and marked with item codes? 
Answer: Correct. 

 
40. Please clarify if the keyboards shown in the Suite Drawings are to be included with the 

pricing?  If so, please provide specifications. 
Answer:  No keyboard trays 

 
41. Will AutoCAD drawings be available for the Suites?  If no drawings are to be provided, 

please advise dimension of T-1(36” or 42” Diameter). 
Answer: Yes AutoCAD files will be provided to the awardee of the contract. 

 
42. Please confirm that the height of panels in WS-1 & WS-5 which are provided in the Typical 

Suite Plans are to be between 65”- 69”H? 

Answer: Correct 

43. The chair requirements noted in the RFP calls for a synchronized tilt control and or tilt-
tension adjustment.  However, weight activated mechanisms are more common because they 
remove much of the complexity involved with adjusting the chair.  Weight-activated chairs 
allow for personalization by the user (in terms of seat height, seat depth, lumbar support, and 
arm support), but will allow the seat and the back to recline in a way that promotes a healthy 
synchronicity between the torso and the lower body.  A weight-activated control will have 
less levers and knobs, which will be less intimidating to the user and allow them to test out 
the controls and how they work. We have seen that if there are too many controls, people will 
not adjust their chairs because they are intimidated by the “unknown”.  We respectfully 
request adding “Weight activated mechanisms” as an option to this requirement. 

Answer: There are no weight restrictions on weight activated mechanisms. 

44. Page 9 notes Eased Edges for Transaction Counters – Please confirm that a standard ABS 
edge is acceptable? 

Answer: No erased edge. 

45. Attachment J.1 Pricing - In the description for the Transitional items it states with raised 
molding details. Is it acceptable if the product line does not have raised molding details? 
Answer: Will be revised in pricing sheet. 

 
46. What is included in “Option One” and “Option Two” in the “All Phases” J.1 Attachment? 

Answer: All the items.  
 

47. In the “All Phases” Attachment J.1 are we to price the WS-1 and the WS-5 as individual? 
Answer:  Yes 

 



48. In Attachment J.1 Phase One – it calls for the WS-5 to be 48”-66” wide. Are we to price all 
widths available within the 48”-66”? 
Answer: Follow pricing sheet 24”D x 66”W 

 
49. Can we get a CAD file? 

Answer: see answer to question #41. 
 

50. PG 18 b. - Payment for Non Performance- This clause is extremely difficult for a dealer to 
accept, as issues impacting performance of the manufacturer could impact dealer 
performance, are you open to an alternate non-performance clause. 
Answer: No 

 
51. PG 27 H.6 – Excusable Delays- This clause is extremely difficult for a dealer to accept, as 

issues impacting performance of the manufacturer could impact dealer performance, are you 
open to an alternate non-performance clause. 

Answer: No 
 

52. Does the customer want all Phases delivered in a one-month time frame as stated on Page 6 
section c.3? or is each phase 2 years in length. 
Answer: As identified on page 6 of the RFP. 

 
53. C.3.2.1c3 – Solid drawer fronts only available from one Manufacturer. As an alternated in 

following industry standard would a veneer front be an acceptable alternate? 
Answer: Yes   

 
54. To meet specifications for certain items, can we simply modification a GSA schedule item to 

meet CHOB specifications and it still be considered a GSA schedule item. Any items 
modified would be priced at same terms and conditions as the GSA Schedule item. 

Answer:  We did not specify that GSA specification are required. 
 

55. C.3.2.1 Specifications c. 3 - The bid states Drawer fronts must be a solid wood, are veneer 
drawer fronts acceptable? 

Answer: see answer to # 53 
 

56. Could you please confirm whether or not product submissions for bid response must be from the 
GSA contract?   Can proposal offers use commercial pricing? 

Answer: This is a full and open competition. 
 
ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS AFTER WALK-THROUGH OF 6-8-2016 

1. Section D. page 13.item C – stated hours of the U.S. Capitol Police Off-Site Deliver 
Center are 5:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.  

Q - Approximately how long does it take for a delivery truck to get through the security 
check-point and are these hours acceptable for the furniture delivery and installation as well? 

Answer: This time varies depending on how many trucks could be waiting at 
the facility, 30 minutes to an hour+. Hours are accurate for the offsite 
facility.  



 
2. Delivery and Installation Timeframe – on the Bill of Materials, there is an 

aggressive anticipated office quantity and timeframe for each installation phase.  
Q - Does this schedule take into consideration issues that would negatively impact 
delivery/installation progress like other trades working in close proximity, multiple security 
checkpoints, holidays, shared elevator access? At the very least, for installation expediency, 
would it be possible to get truck and personnel security authorization in advance, by 
installation phase, to minimize the amount of time necessary for the furniture to get through 
the security checkpoint? 

Answer: Not likely, a delivery time can be scheduled for on campus 
receiving, however it would be very hard to schedule internal access solely 
for this process. To my knowledge the Capitol Police checkpoint does not 
schedule their inspection, trucks are scanned as they arrive, in that order. 

  
3. Will all participants have to be US citizens, or are legal residents OK if they’ve been cleared? 

Answer: All Temporary contracting employees will go through Capitol 
Police vetting process, which includes fingerprinting, background check and 
a check on immigration status.  

 
4. Will a tractor trailer be permitted onto the C Street side for off-loading? 

Answer: They have in the past, yes. Keep in mind, this is a garage entrance 
that is shared with incoming and outgoing traffic, not really and ideal 
situation for unloading. Weather can have impacts as well.  

 
5.  Will we be able to reserve a spot? 

Answer: Since this is a specific requirement it will have to be scheduled and 
arranged through the Capitol Police. 

 
6. Can we lock off the freight if we give them specific times that it will be needed? 

Answer: Yes, however it will need to be scheduled 2 weeks in advance with 
dates and times for each operation.  Certain times/dates may not be 
approved or will require rescheduling depending on other operations in the 
building which use the freight elevator. Please keep in mind daily operations 
standard furniture deliveries and mail deliveries must continue. It would be 
best to schedule these early in the AM.    
 

 
7. On Page 8, section b item 10 it states that “data outlet plate shall be provided by the furniture 

manufacturer”. Does that mean the cutout in the tile where the data port will go, or the actual 
faceplate in which the data will be terminated (something usually provided by the data/IT 
contractor)? 

Answer:  The IT contractor will provide the actual faceplate.  The furniture 
vendor will provide the cut out for the face plate to attach to.   

 
 



8. T-1 – For the Traditional round conference table, is a traditional wood pedestal base 
acceptable instead of a metal disc base? (ie: Queen Anne or Federal style base) 

Answer: Yes, this will be updated on the matrix 
 

9. T-2 – End table: Standard height for an end table is approx. 21” H, you are asking for 26-
28” H. Please confirm that a 21” height is acceptable for the end table.  

Answer: Standard end table height is fine. 
10. PO-1T – Please confirm pedestals required for this double pedestal desk. (i.e.: 

box/box/file – file/file, or box/box/file – box/box/file)? 
Answer: See C.3.2.1.c.1 

 
11. PO-1T, PO-2T, RE-1T, BC-3T, BC-5T, CF-2, CF-3 – 3-D Drawings show base and 

beltline molding – is this required for the transitional units? Would it be acceptable to 
have the base molding only?  Please confirm.  

Answer: Molding is not required on Transitional units 
 
12. PO-1T, PO-2T, RE-1T – Requirement calls for both “period style”  and “modern” 

hardware for the transitional units and under the General Product Description calls for 
“Transitional style using similar finishes but more modern surface edge details and 
hardware details”.  Please confirm that modern hardware is acceptable.  The 3-D views 
also show a modern bar style.   

Answer: Yes 
 
13. BC-3, BC-5 – Are the Traditional bookcases going to be ganged together or are they 

stand alone? 
Answer: Both 

 
14. CS-2, CS-3 – Please confirm thickness of conference table tops. Also please advise if we 

should quote in laminate or veneer, or both? 
Answer: Listed under C.3.2.1.a.1  

 
15. RE-2 – This item is not on the RFP. There is however a drawing for this. Is this unit 

required? If this is required, is the top panel portion with glass specifically required?   
Answer: Matrix will be updated 

 
 

16. WS-6 – This item is not on the RFP? There is however a drawing for this? Is this unit 
required? If this unit is required, what type of height adjustable base is this, electric, 
manual or pneumatic?  Veneer or laminate top? 

Answer:  D.10 requests a sit to stand work surface, 60”W x 24”D, please 
follow work surface guidelines. Please price all three adjustable base types if 
they are available. 

 
17. WS-7T, CR-1T, CR-2T, RT-1T, MP-1, CR-1, CR-2, RE-3 - There are numerous 

drawings that were included with the package, but are not on the RFP? Are these units 
required?  



Answer: Only items on matrix are required; Matrix will be updated 
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SECTION B – SUPPLIES OR SERVICES AND PRICING 

B.1.    PRICING SCHEDULE (Attachments referenced are in Section J.1) Note revisions to attachments.

a. Attachment J.1 Pricing Workbook Includes:  Phase 1, Phase 2, Phase 3, Phase 4, All phases, Design and
Installation and Option 1 & 2. This is to be completed and inserted in File 1 of your proposal. 

Product Pricing 

• Phases 1, 2, 3 and 4: complete column B.
• All phases: complete column A.
• Design and installation: complete columns C, D, E, F, G and H
• Option 1 & 2: complete columns A & B

Design and Layout Pricing (additional information) 

 Design / Layout:  In the Member’s Office, the design layout is to include the reception area, the
Chief of Staff Office and Staff workstations.

 Installation cost is to reflect:
• Installation cost for one Member’s Office including the reception area, the Chief of Staff

Office, and the Staff workstations.
• Installation cost per phase:

b. Attachment J.2 Typical Suite Pricing Sheet (Excel Worksheet) to be completed and inserted in Administrative and
Pricing proposal

End of Section B 
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  SECTION C – DESCRIPTIONS/SPECIFICATIONS/SCOPE OF SERVICES  

 
C.1 BACKGROUND 

 
The United States House of Representatives (House), Office of the Chief Administrative Officer (CAO), is issuing this 
solicitation pursuant to the Guidelines for Procurement of Goods and Services for the U.S. House of Representatives 
(Procurement Guidelines). The Procurement Guidelines are available on the House website, www.house.gov, Doing 
Business with the House, under Additional Resources. Procurements by the House are not governed by the Federal 
Acquisition Regulation (FAR) or other procurement statutes, regulations and policies applicable to the federal executive 
branch, except where specifically stated in this solicitation or applicable law.  The terms and conditions contained in this 
solicitation will be incorporated into any contract(s) awarded as a result of this solicitation. 
 
Currently, the House is involved in the efforts to support the renovation of the Cannon House Office Building (CHOB) 
with the Architect of the Capitol as the lead.   The CHOB is the oldest Congressional office building outside of the 
Capitol Building and is in need of a complete renewal, a.k.a. “Cannon Renewal Project.”   The building has not 
received a comprehensive systems upgrade since the 1930s, and many of the building's systems are original – dating back 
to 1908 or earlier. The systems are past the end of their useful lives and the increasing risk of their failure jeopardizes the 
building's long-term functionality and safety. Other necessary work includes upgrading infrastructure systems and 
repairing the exterior stone façade.  As part of this effort, the CAO will be responsible for those services that fall within its 
scope of services which encompasses the provision of furniture systems.     

 
C.2   OBJECTIVE 
 
The purpose of this solicitation and any contract resulting there from is to enter into a contractual relationship with one 
contractor to provide, coordinate and install modular furniture for the Cannon Renewal Project.   
 
C.3     DESCRIPTION OF WORK 
 
The scope of this requirement entails the procurement of functional, quality, sustainable furnishings that are the best value 
to the House.   Furniture includes predominantly modular furniture with the option of ancillary furniture such as case 
goods, chairs, and mats. 
 
The total estimated number of system workstations for the Cannon Renewal project is 1,851(see chart below). 
 
Project Schedule: Time estimate is subject to change: 

Phase # Installation Period Estimated Number of Workstations 
1 9/15/2018  to 10/15/2018 514 
2  9/15/2020  to 10/15/ 2020 397 
3  9/15/2022  to  10/15/2022 533 
4  9/15/ 2024 to  10/15/ 2024 407 

 TOTAL 1851 
 
C.3.1 SYSTEMS FURNITURE 
 

a. General Information 
 
This section includes procurement, delivery and installation of various types of systems furniture and performance 
requirements including, but not limited to the following: 
 

• Structural Panels 
• Technology Power, Data & Communications  
• Cable Management 
• Work Surface  
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• Standing workstations options 
• Workstation Personal Storage 
• Accessories 
• Keying 

 
b. General Product Description 
 
Systems furniture includes office furniture which can be reconfigured from a kit of parts and generally includes 
interconnecting structural panels as central integrating elements or may employ rail, beam, frame and structural 
uprights, core or freestanding based elements.  Panels (structural), work surfaces, wardrobes, overhead storage 
cabinets, file pedestals, lateral filing, task management accessories, electrical components, and cable management 
accessories are all components of systems furniture. 
 

 Additionally: 
• Product structural components shall have a painted finish (i.e. baked enamel or powder coat). 
• Work surfaces shall have a mid-grade high pressure laminate top with a self-edge. Veneer options are 

stipulated in the text and called out on the pricing sheets. 
• Where fabric is called for, contractor shall specify grade 3 or equivalent unless specified otherwise.  All 

finishes proposed should be available for the duration of the project and have long-term availability. 
 

C.3.1.1 Specifications 
 

a. Structural Panel 
1. The frame must be a minimum of 16-gauge steel including supports, top and bottom rails and must 

have fully welded junctions free of burrs or irregularities. 
2. Panels must be load bearing and capable of being loaded on one side only. 
3. The panel system must be capable of continuous dimensional runs as defined in the drawing details.  

Adequate support must be provided for any given run which may require supplemental support under 
the work surface.  Supplemental supports must not limit knee space for occupants. 

4. Overall panel thickness shall be 3” or less. 
5. Panels must have off modular capability. 
6. Frame width options to include various widths ranging from 18 to 48” wide in 6” increments. 
7. Frame heights to range from 30” – 69”H dependent on design 
8. Frames and connectors allow for horizontal “lay in” or “fish through” for all wires and cables.  Metal 

wire separation trays must be available. 
9. The following accessories must be integrated with the system:  tackable panels or tack boards, rail tiles 

or tool bars, and full range of associated hang on accessories, transaction counters, and magnetic 
marker boards with attached or magnetic marker board rails. 

10. Frames allow for a full range of component mounting heights. 
11. Frames to be available in a minimum of three heights, with a stacker frame option. 
12. Frames include self-leveling, or single-tool adjustable glides for uneven floors. 
13. Frames shall have the ability to be powered and non-powered.  Non-powered panels shall have the 

ability to be field retrofitted with power. 
14. Frames must have the ability to accept various tile covers that include: 

a. Open from the floor to the work surface. 
b. Open the entire panel frame. 
c. Stackable. 
d. Tiled covers to include at least three tiles to cover panels higher than 50”. 

15. The system must include connectors that provide 2, 3, or 4 way frame connections with full finished 
end caps. 

16. Panel finish options must include acoustical fabric, tackable fabric, painted metal (metallic, magnetic, 
textured, or smooth finishes), laminate, veneer surfaces, magnetic marker board, translucent materials, 
and open frame.  Please price tackable fabric panels with tackable tiles. 
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17. All exposed ends and reveals of frames are covered with hard surface finished trim pieces.  All 

hardware included. 
18. Frames need to be tiled. 

 
b. Technology Power, Data and Communications 

1. Each work station will have a minimum of one (1) isolated circuit designated as such and up to three (3) 
convenience circuits.  

2. Power infeed shall be an 8 wire, 4 circuit systems with 4 hot, 2 neutral and 2 grounds.  
3. Outlets shall be numbered (coded) with circuit identification.  The isolated circuit designator shall be color 

coded differently than non-isolated circuit receptacles. 
4. Receptacles shall be easily added, removed or relocated.  Client to provide designation of core electrical 

and tele/data closets for consistent labeling. 
5. Power infeed whips to be a minimum of 6’ and capable of being trimmed in the field.  Extra-long lengths 

shall be available if needed. 
6. Panel shall be able to house a minimum of 3 cabling raceways with double channeled raceways preferred. 

Lay-in cabling is preferred for the top of panel with “lay-in” or “fish through” capability internal to the 
panel.  Two should be at the desk top, and two should be at the raceway.  

7. Provide power and data access at work surface height.  Power outlets and data outlets must be connected to 
integrated raceways. Provide 2 USB re-charging outlets at work surface height. 

8. Provide one (1) Data & Duplex outlet drop at the end of the workstation grouping for desktop printing (if 
required). 

9. Each data drop includes four (4) ports to be provided by others.  Contractor to coordinate face plate 
requirements with technology vendor. 

10. Data outlet plate cut out shall be provided for the face plate to attach to by the furniture manufacturer. 
11.  Spine must be able to carry a minimum of eight (8) CAT 6 cables with a bending radius of not less than 

one inch and a minimum of eight (8) coax cables with desk top termination. 
12. All vertical and horizontal raceways must be a minimum of 4 square inches and be isolated from power 

raceways and other wiring.  
13. Power should be in the panels that house overhead cabinets. 
14. Each station requires 3 duplex receptacles. 
15. WS-6 requires 1 duplex receptacle, 1 data and 2 usb ports in the table top. 

 
c. Cable Management 

1. Cables and cords must be managed vertically and horizontally and must be held tight to underside of work 
surfaces so as not to be visible. 

2. Wire management solution must provide easy access to cables and cords without special tools.  Baskets are 
acceptable. 

3. The solution must accommodate varying locations of desk top equipment to suit individual user 
preferences. 

4. Provide a scallop, grommet or continuous gap at the back edge of the work surface for wire management. 
 

d. Work Surfaces 
1. Work surface standard depth requirements to be 24” and 30”.  If low storage is proposed, depth would 

adjust to 18-20” accordingly.  
2. Lengths shall be available from 24” to 66”. 
3. All work surfaces over 60” in length shall have a reinforced core so as not to impede users. All proposed 

vendors to provide cut sheets of how the work surfaces are center supported without impeding users. 
4. Work surfaces shall be panel mounted or freestanding. 
5. Panel mounted work surfaces should be adjustable in 1” height increments 
6. Work surfaces shall be non-handed where possible with all edges eased equally.   
7. Undersides of work surfaces shall accept panel-hung and freestanding supports as indicated on drawings 

and be smooth surfaced. 
8. Standard work-surface to have fully finished self-edges on all sides and be sealed against moisture. 
9. Work surface shall have a mid-grade high pressure laminate surface with the option of a veneer. 
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10. Provide a sit to stand work surface/desk option. 
11. Provide a curved corner unit option. 
12. WS-6 to have sit to stand surface, electronically height-adjustable/ 66”Wx24”D. 
13. WS-6 to include a desk-attached privacy panel above the surface, and a modesty panel below the surface. 

Both to be 10”-15”H. 
 
 

e. Workstation Personal Storage 
1. Storage pedestals and credenzas: 

a. Mobile, fixed and freestanding storage with box/file, box/box/file or file/file options available. 
b. Include one pencil tray for each pedestal to be located in the top box drawer. 
c. Storage pedestals available in depths to match work surface and shall accommodate both letter and 

legal hanging files. 
d. Include a file support channel integral to the drawer construction to allow for side to side hanging 

folders in each file drawer.  Minimum 20 gauge steel construction. 
e. All drawers components include full extension glides  
f. All storage units are finished on all sides 
g. All storage shall be locking and keyed alike within an individual station.  
h. The Offeror will indicate whether storage components have the option of veneer fronts. 
i. WKSTN WS-6 to have a 30”W open bookcase under the surface, and a 30”W BF next to it. BF to 

have a cushion top above, Grade 3 fabric or equivalent. 
j. Laminate w/ PVC or self-edge on all storage. 

 
2. Overhead Cabinets: 

a. Storage unit shall be capable of being wall or panel mounted or other support mechanism.  
b. Cabinets shall have options for swing doors, sliding doors, bookshelf or open configurations.  
c. Door fronts shall be available as painted, laminate or veneer surfaces. 
d. Cabinet storage to be finished on all sides and compatible with other surfaces.  
 

3. General: 
a. All file drawers have full extension. 
b. All file drawers shall accommodate letter or legal filing capabilities.  All necessary hanging rails shall 

be included. 
c. Storage units shall have leveling glides. 
d. All storage units shall be locking and keyed alike per station. 
e. Shelves must be adjustable on 1” increments. 
f. All pulls to be American Disabilities Act (ADA) compliant. 
g. Storage units shall be constructed of a one-piece case for a finished appearance on all sides with no 

overlapping seams.  Construction shall inhibit racking of units when fully loaded. 
h. Storage units shall be constructed with minimum 20 gauge steel with a baked enamel surface, or 

powder coat paint finish. 
i. Standard task lights should be included. 
j. Veneer and/or laminate option to be available for all component fronts. 

f. Accessories: 
1. Tackable and/or magnetic covered wipe board panels available. 
2. Panel-supported transaction counters available, finishes to match work surfaces with eased edge. 
3. Transaction counters should sit on top of the panel and not protrude into the workspace of the workstation. 
4. Transaction counters should have an eased edge. 
5. Accessory boards or rails match panel widths. 
6. Paper management devices available with horizontal, vertical, and diagonal options for desktop and panel 

mounted applications. 
7. Paper management includes a slanted file-holder, pencil cup, in/out box, media holder, phone tray, and 

other items as offered by manufacturer.   
8. Coat hooks that attach to the panel available. 
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9. Workstation signs that attach to the panel available. 

 
g. Keying 

1. All locking devices within a given station will be keyed alike. 
2. All storage components shall be locking. 
3. Identical key numbers shall not be assigned to workstations in close proximity. 
4. Provide one key for each lock.  
5. All key core should be alike in each station 
6. See additional key requirements in Furniture Scope of Work.  
 

C.3.2 ANCILLARY FURNITURE 
 
a. General Information 
This section deals with the following furniture and accessories: 

 
• Conference Tables 
• Chair Mats 
• Storage Units 
• Casegoods Desks, Credenzas and Storage Hutches 
• Bookcases 
• Occasional Tables 
• Adjustable Height Work Surfaces 
• Task Chairs 
 
b. General Product Description 

 
This section identifies the minimum acceptable levels of product performance for any given item. Offerors should 
carefully review all documents including the floor plans to determine and verify locations, conditions and 
quantities of products.   

 
Freestanding casegoods shall be provided in distinct styles including the following but not limited to: 
• Traditional style with panels, moldings and other details. 
• Transitional style using similar finishes but more modern surface edge profiles and hardware details 
• All style casegoods shall provide options for cable management and power. 
• All finishes proposed should be available for the duration of the project and have long-term availability. 

 
C.3.2.1 Specifications 
a. Conference Table 

1. The external face of the tables shall be medium grade high pressure laminate with the option of a veneer.  
Price in both laminate and in veneer only. Offer to state if the finish is open or closed pore veneer finish. 

2. Table tops shall be available in a variety of edge profiles.  
3. Veneers will be natural and available in manufacturer’s standard species, colors and finishes. 
4. Table bases shall be wood or metal pedestal style, painted or anodized metal finish. Dark bronze or black. 

b. Chair Mat 
1.    Rectangular floor mat 36” x 48” suitable for low to medium pile carpet tile.  

 
c. Casegoods Desk and Casegoods Reception Desk   

1. Provide a wood veneer finished, double pedestal panel-end desk. Exposed surfaces to be clad in wood 
veneer with at least four finish options   Provide one pedestal with file/file configuration and one with 
box/box/file configuration. 

2. All drawers shall have ADA compliant pulls. 
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3. All desk structural connections to be glued hardwood cores with re-enforced joints at the top and panel leg. 

Medium Density Fiberboard (MDF) or plywood cores are acceptable for panels. Drawer fronts must be a 
solid wood or veneer, but the sides and the bottom may vary in terms of construction and material. Drawer 
glides to be full extension, ball bearing type glides. 

4. Provide key alike locks for desk pedestals.  
5. Provide leveling guides for the panel ends and pedestals. 
6. Provide an internal wire management system within the desk structure to manage cables from the desk top 

to the floor. 
7. Provide a transaction top for the full span of the reception desk with wood veneer and matching plastic 

laminate wood grain top as a finish option. 
8. Hutches should have a task light and a tack board in a grade 3 fabric or equivalent 
9. Hutches will span the length of the desk and needs to be interchangeable with spanning the desk and 

return. 
10. Molding not required on transitional units.   
11. Modern hardware is acceptable on transitional units. 
 
 
 

d. Bookcases 
1. Provide a wood veneer finished enclosed bookcase, 3 and 5 shelf options. Exposed surfaces to be clad in 

wood veneer it and offered in at least four finish options. 
2. Shelves to be 1” thick with adequate re-enforced support, spanning the length of the shelf, to prevent 

deflection. 
3. Shelves shall be adjustable 
4. All structural connections to be glued hardwood cores with re-enforced joints for the case. MDF or 

plywood cores are acceptable for panels.  
 
e. Occasional Tables – Coffee height and end table height 

1. Provide a wood veneer or laminate top  coffee table 42” x 24” x 16-18” high and end table 24” square at 
26-28” high standard end table height. Exposed surfaces to be clad in wood veneer it at least four finish 
options. 

2. Table tops to be a minimum of 1” thick with re-enforced steel support, spanning the length of the top to 
prevent deflection. 

3. Provide a design with panel end and four leg options. 
4. All structural connections to be glued hardwood cores with re-enforced joints for the case. MDF or 

plywood cores are acceptable for panels.  
5. Provide transitional leg and traditional design options only. 
6. Edging detail to be determined. 

f. Task Chairs 
1. All Chairs shall be warranted for a minimum of 10 years on all parts including pneumatic cylinders with 

the exception of seat padding and upholstery which will be warranted for a minimum of 5 years. 
2. All products shall be warranted for 24/7 applications. Multi-use applications shall not affect warranty 

terms and conditions. 
3. All products to be tested and warranted for users up to 300 lbs. 
4. Foam, glues and adhesives shall be free of Chlorofluorocarbons (CFC’s) and be low Volatile Organic 

Compounds (VOC’s).  
 

C.4    PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

a. All testing to be provided by an independent laboratory or the manufacturers certified testing facility.  
b. Documented compliance shall be included in the bid proposal.  
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c. Product shall meet or exceed all American National Standards Institute (ANSI) and  Business Institutional 

Furniture Manufactures Association (BIFMA)  American National Standard for Office Furnishings 
General Purpose Office Chairs  for: 
• Dimensions 
• Ergonomic Guidelines 
• Stability 

d. Upholstery and padding materials shall comply with BIFMA furniture Flammability Standard as well as 
First Generation Voluntary Upholstered F State of California Technical Information Bulletin 117 
(California TB117) and all seating to be labeled in compliance with California TB117.   

e. Fabric to meet requirements of no less than 75,000 double rubs by the ASTM D4157 Wyzenbeek Method 
(2002). 

f. There are no weight restrictions on weight activated mechanisms. 
 

C.4.1   Seat Requirements 
1. Chair shall have synchronized tilt control and or tilt-tension adjustment. 
2. Chair shall have tilting capabilities 
3. Chair shall have a standard pneumatic seat height adjustment with a 4” range of height. 
4. All control devices shall be within easy reach from a seated position in accordance with ADA 

standards. 
5. Chair seat width shall be a minimum of 20” 
6.  Chair should be warranted to hold up to 300lbs. 
6. Chair seat pan design shall distribute forces evenly over the contact area.  Adjustability is preferred. 
7. Upholstered seat with an option for a either a mesh or upholstered back. For upholstery, must be 

grade 3 or equivalent.  
8. All chairs shall have user instructions attached. 
 
C.4.2    Backrest Requirements 
1. Backrest height to be a minimum of 18” form seat per Human Factors and Ergonomic Society 

(HFES) requirements. 
2. Backrest shall have a minimum width of 20” and should not interfere with the user’s movement. 
3. The chair shall include a tilt tension control the force required to recline. 
4. The chair shall have an adjustable lumbar support. 
5. An upright Back-lock shall be available. 
 
C.4.3    Arm Requirements 
1. Armrest height to be adjustable by user. 
2. Horizontally adjustable armrests are preferred. 

 
C.4.4    Base and Caster Requirements 
1. Chairs shall have a metal 5 star base in polished, brushed, or painted finishes. 
2. Chairs to be available with hard or soft wheel.  
3. Hard casters shall be double wheeled. 

 
 

 
End of Section C 
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SECTION J -- LIST OF DOCUMENTS, EXHIBITS AND OTHER ATTACHMENTS  
 
J.1 ATTACHMENTS 

 
Attachment No. Reference in 

Solicitation 
Title Pages 

J.1 Section B Pricing Sheets 7 
J.2 Section B Typical Suite Pricing 1 
J.3 Section C.4 Typical Layouts 8   
J.4  Section D.2 c Off Site Delivery Instructions 1 
J.5  Section H.15 Non-Disclosure Agreement 1 
J.6 Section  H.22 Employment Eligibility Verification Form 1 
J.7 Section K.13 Bailment Agreement 2 
J.8 Additional 

information 
only 

Enlarged Furniture Images 28 

J.9 Additional 
information 
only 

Modular Pieces by Phase. (Cross reference with 
Attachment J.1, column titled “Tag.”) 

1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
End of Section J 
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SECTION L -- INSTRUCTIONS, CONDITIONS AND NOTICES TO BIDDERS  
 
L.1  CONTENT OF PROPOSALS OCTOBER 2001 

 
This will be a two-phase evaluation process.  Phase I will consist of an initial evaluation of proposals submitted.  The 
House will choose up to four of the highest rated contractors that are within the competitive range to participate in Phase 
II:  a Member Office pilot program.  After the term of the pilot program, final evaluations will take place based on the 
factors utilized during the pilot program.  Final proposal revisions may be sought.  The ratings of the pilot program will be 
combined with the Phase I results to identify the proposal that is the most advantageous to the House.    
 

(a) Offerors shall submit proposals in sufficient detail to enable the House to make a thorough evaluation thereof, 
and to arrive at a sound determination as to whether or not the proposal conforms to the solicitation and is the 
most advantageous to the House when all relevant factors are considered. Offerors shall submit information in 
a clear, concise, factual and logical manner. Offerors are reminded to avoid excessively lengthy or overly 
extravagant proposals and proposals that emphasize marketing information at the expense of substantive 
responses to House requirements.  

 
(b) Proposals should not necessarily reiterate the House text but rather respond to the all the elements identified 

in Section C. Statement of Work and those additional elements identified below. Proposals that do not 
address all of the elements and requirements of the solicitation may be disqualified from further 
consideration.  

 
(c) The specific evaluation criteria are found in Section M.  Detailed instructions regarding the information the 

House requires in order to evaluate proposals are included in Section L. 
 

(d) It is the Offeror’s responsibility to carefully read, understand and comply with all solicitation instructions. 
Failure to comply with solicitation instructions is solely at the Offeror’s risk. 

 
 
L.1.1 PROPOSAL FORMAT – will consist of two electronic files that contain the following but not limited to: 
 
PHASE 1 
 
a. File I - Administrative and Price Proposal.  The Price Proposal shall be divided into the following distinct 
and marked parts.   
 

o Solicitation and Offer Form. The Offeror shall insert Cover Sheet page 1, with all required/applicable 
blocks completed, which are 10, 11, 12, 13, 14,d and 15 a, b, c, and d..  

 
o Section B - Price Schedule.   

 Attachment J.1 Pricing. 
 Attachment J.2 Typical Suite Pricing 

 
o Section G - Contract Administration - Acknowledgement of Amendments, if any.  The Offeror shall 

acknowledge receipt of all amendments, as defined in Section L.2. 
 

o Section K - Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements.  The Offeror shall complete and 
insert Section K in its entirety. Yellow highlighted areas require your attention. 

                   
o Other Statements to be included in this section: 

 Attachment J.7  Bailment Agreement  
 Attachment J.5 Non-Disclosure Agreement 
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 Attachment J.6 CAO Contractor Eligibility Verification Form 
 American National Standards Institute (ANSI) certification 
 Business Institutional Furniture Manufactures Associations (BIFMA)certification 
 Certificates of Insurance 

 
b. File II – Technical Proposal   

 
The technical response is to address the specification C.3.1 through C.4.4. in order, after which should follow 
your responses to the below three Evaluation Factors. Do not discuss any pricing matters in this section.  Do not 
combine or repeat the data from one section to another, or change the order in which subject items are set forth in 
these instructions when preparing your proposal.   
 

  
1.  EVALUATION FACTOR #1 - PRODUCT COMPLIANCE & FUNCTIONALITY. 
 
a. The House will consider how the Offeror’s selected products meet the requirements of the solicitation. The 
contractor shall provide/demonstrate the following: 
  

(1) Demonstrate that the products and services proposed meet the specification requirements for: 
a) Commercially available systems and ancillary furniture products (include specification sheets) as outlined 

in Section C by Subsection title and Attachments 1 & 2.  Offerors proposing products that are not on 
Federal Supply Schedule should provide full specifications for those products and indicate as “open 
market.” 

b) Offerors shall provide their own product-specific 8.5” x 11” black and white PDF drawings (plans, 
elevations, and 3D’s isometrics) of their solutions to each workstation typical, as well as documentation 
that the products meet or exceed the specifications.  You should provide color catalog cut sheets to 
illustrate the product line(s) being offered. 

c) Provide sample finishes (excluding fabrics) to harmonize with the CHOB building finishes (which will be 
discussed and shown at the site visit). 

(2) Describe the ease and effort of system furniture re-configurability. 
(3) Describe innovations in your product that separates your product from competitors. 
(4) Provide and describe warranty information offered for all products. 
(5) Identify how you will sustain the proposed product(s) for the duration of project. 

 
   
 2.  EVALUATION FACTOR #2   CORPORATE CAPABILITIES / MANAGEMENT APPROACH  

 
This factor considers the firm’s capability to meet the project schedule as well as demonstrating the flexibility, 
sustainment and ability to improve the product quality throughout the life of the project and beyond while at the same 
time controlling or reducing costs.  
 
a. Corporate Capability  
 
(1)  Please provide a brief narrative of your company’s history, accomplishments, awards as well as your 
organizational chart. This is to include the chain of command from the Installation crew to the CEO/President of the 
organization.    
(2) Provide an overview of your organization’s manufacturing operation and distribution channels. 
(3) Describe your company’s quality assurance methodology. 
(4)Describe your company’s customer service vision. 
(5) Provide an overview of your company’s strategic plan. 
(6)Describe the process that your company uses to formulate new designs and products.  
(a)Are new / future products engineered to be retrofitted with current products? 
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b. Management Approach 

 
(1) Provide a milestone schedule with key dates beginning with contract award and proceeding through 
manufacturing, delivery, and installation.  Specifically address your approach in meeting the installation schedule in 
Section C.3. 
(2)Provide the structure, work method, and credentials of your installation team. 
 
a. Include the resumes of your team leads and key personnel. Show their involvement in other long term, large, 
furniture installation projects and specifically their involvement in “Evaluation Factor #3”. Key personnel must 
include the following: 

1. Project Executive - at least 15 years of experience on Federal Government contracting 
projects.  Bachelors and/or Masters, in Engineering, Architecture, Interior Design, Construction 
Management, or equivalent.  PMP preferred.  Legislative experience a plus. 

2. Project Manager/Senior Designer - at least 10 years of experience on Federal Government contracting 
projects, to include a Bachelor’s degree in Architecture, Interior Design, or equivalent.  LEED AP and 
PMP a plus.  Legislative experience a plus.  Furniture procurement experience a must. 

 
b. Indicate the staffing mix to be utilized.  If subcontractors, provide the name, background, and experience of the 
firm(s). 
(3) Describe the customer service approach that will be utilized for this project. 
(4)Provide your Management Plan in narrative format that identifies the approach that will ensure success of this 
project. 
(5) Describe your contingency plan that will ensure no disruption of delivery or installation. 
(6) Describe your overall plan in managing and setting up the Pilot Program, as well as your phase out plan. 

 
  
3.  EVALUATION FACTOR #3 EXPERIENCE / PAST PERFORMANCE 
 

a. This factor evaluates the Offeror's relevant experience as well as past performance considering the quality of the 
Offeror's past performance. The Evaluation Team will consider the Offeror's relevant experience (inclusive 
of installation and design team), including how recently such experience occurred. Whether a project has 
“relevant prior experience” is determined by the extent to which prior experience is of similar scope and 
complexity to the CHOB renewal.  
 
b.  Offerors are to identify at a minimum three (3) similar projects preferably with same product as is 
being proposed or type and of similar size or larger as identified in this solicitation which has been 
completed in the last five (5) years. It would be preferred if one project was a federal government project 
completed in Washington, DC. 

 
1.  Project data: The offeror shall submit the following data for each project: 

i. Title 
ii. Company  / Agency 

iii. Location 
iv. Contact Person (name, address, phone number, email if available)  
v. Description of “scope” of work to include the number of workstations and or 

systems provided, model name if any.  
vi. Provide the duration and dollar value of the project. 
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PHASE II (Pilot Program) 

• There may be up to three Alternate Member Suites (reference Attachment 3 Typical Suite A for layout) 
that will be outfitted with offerors recommended workstations. 

• Up to four offerors may be selected for Phase II and will be required to install the following: 
o Workstations – an offer may have to provide up to 6 workstations for the Staff area as well as 

outfitting the reception area with your proposed product. 
o At the conclusion of Phase II all offerors are responsible to de-assemble and pick up their 

product.  
• Reference Bailment Agreement, Attachment 7.  

  
 
 1.  PILOT PROGRAM EVALUATION FACTORS  

a. The Evaluation Team will select Offerors who meet the Technical requirements, have agreed to the Bailment 
Agreement and are within a competitive range for use in the Pilot Program. This is the “test drive” phase of the 
evaluation. 
 
b. The following areas will be evaluated during the Pilot Phase: 
 

• Customer feedback and overall satisfaction. 
• Ergonomics and comfort of modular furniture. 
• Product delivered and installed on time. 
• Ease and time it takes for installation. 
• Functionality and flexibility of product. 
• Durability /Quality.  
• Ease of reconfiguration and re-assembly.  
• Management Approach/Effectiveness of Offeror to respond to and resolve product problems, adjustments, 

warranty or any other issues that may have arisen in the Pilot stage. 
o If there are any issues related to furniture installation, contractor must be on site within 24 hours 

of notification from the House’s authorized representative who will be later identified. 
  
 
L.1.2 Final Evaluations 
 
After conclusion of the Pilot Program, the House will conduct final proposal evaluations at which time the House may 
request best and final offers resulting in a single award. 
 

 
L.2  SUBMISSIONS MARCH 2004 

 
a. Offerors shall submit their entire proposal, via e-mail to james.tiani@mail.house.gov in Adobe PDF or 

Microsoft Word/Excel by 2:00PM June 30, 2016 July 15, 2016.  The size of the file shall not exceed 20 
Megabytes (MB).  Subject line of email should read (Company Name) and OAM16028S.  Offerors 
are reminded that late submissions will not be accepted unless the cause of the late receipt is due solely to 
the House.  Revisions to the original proposal will be accepted as long as they are received by the 
aforementioned due date.   

 
b. A Pre-proposal Conference and Walk-through of House facilities will be held June 8, 2016.    Companies 

are asked to limit participation to no more than three individuals.  Please provide your company name and 
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individual(s) for the walk-through via email to james.tiani@mail.house.gov no later than 2:00 P.M. local 
time June 6, 2016.  Meeting location and details will be provided upon registration.  Failure to pre- 
register will result in non- admittance to the facility. 

 
c. Questions concerning this RFP must be submitted in writing.  The deadline for receipt of all questions is 

June 3, 2016.  Questions must be submitted via email to james.tiani@mail.house.gov with a copy to 
christine.stewart@mail.house.gov. Subject of Email to read:  [your company name ] Questions 
OAM16028S. 

 
d. Questions and answers will be published in an amendment to the solicitation.  

 
e. The House may, at its sole discretion, request oral presentations from offers that are determined to be in 

the competitive range.  
  

L.3  LATE SUBMISSIONS AND REVISION OF PROPOSALS APRIL 2013 
 
Any late submission or revision to a submission received by the CO after the time for receipt specified may be rejected and 
may not be considered unless the cause for non-receipt of was due solely to the actions of the House.   
 
The Offeror is solely responsible for the timely delivery of proposals submitted via e-mail.  The House is not responsible 
for misaddressed, misrouted, or rejected e-mail messages.    
 
Submissions may be withdrawn by e-mail or other written notice received at any time before award. 
 
L.4  ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF AMENDMENTS TO SOLICITATIONS APRIL 2013 

 
Offerors shall acknowledge receipt of any amendments to this Solicitation requiring bi-lateral signatures: 
 
a. by signing and returning the amendment; 

 
b. by identifying the amendment number and date in the space provided for this purpose on the form for submitting an 

offer; or 
 

c. by letter if authorized, the Contracting Officer must receive the acknowledgment by the time specified for receipt of 
offers. 

 
L.5   INFORMATION DISTRIBUTION AND CONTACTS FEBRUARY 2016 

 
It is the intention of the House to provide equal treatment of all Offerors involved in the proposal and award process. To 
achieve this goal the House intends to provide all information relevant to the process to all participating Offerors.  Such 
information will include the distribution of all questions and answers to all participants. All questions from Offerors shall 
be submitted in writing by the date and time specified for such purposes. 
 
Questions regarding this solicitation must be submitted via e-mail by the following due date and time:                         
June 3, 2016. The primary contact for all communications and questions is: 
James Tiani 
Contracts Specialist 
E-mail:   James.tiani@mail.house.gov           Phone: (202) 225-7158 
 
L.6  RESTRICTION ON DISCLOSURE AND USE OF DATA APRIL 2013 

 

mailto:james.tiani@mail.house.gov
mailto:james.tiani@mail.house.gov
mailto:christine.stewart@mail.house.gov
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Offerors, who include in their proposal data that they do not want disclosed to the public for any purpose or used by the 
House except for evaluation purposes, shall:  (a) mark the title page with the following legend: 
 
“This proposal includes data that shall not be disclosed outside the House and shall not be duplicated, used, or disclosed--
in whole or in part – for any purpose other than to evaluate this proposal.  If, however, a contract is awarded as a result of – 
or in connection with – the submission of this data, the House shall have the right to duplicate, use, or disclose the data, 
including cost and pricing data, to the extent provided in the resulting contract.  This restriction does not limit the House’s 
right to use information contained in this data if it is obtained from another source without restriction.  The data subject to 
this restriction are contained in sheets numbered [insert number(s)];” and 
 
(b) mark each sheet of data to be restricted with the following legend: 
 
“Use or disclosure of data contained on this sheet is subject to the restriction on the title page of this proposal.” 
 
 
 
 
End of Section L 
 
 
  



Attachment J.1. pricing Matrix



Offer Name___________________ PHASE 1                 
RFP OAM16038S

Attachment J.1 Pricing
GS11P13MKC0022

(rev6-22-2016)

Offeror is responsible for confirming counts/quantities of all furniture parts and components

Qty 
Phase 1

 Unit 
Price         

Phase 1 
Tag Item Description

1 PO-1
Double pedestal 

desk 
Min: 30" D Max: 34"D, Min 66"W Max: 68"W x 66", Traditional style with raised 
molding details, period style hardware

1 PO-2
Single pedestal desk 

w/ return
Min: 30" D Max: 34"D, Min 66"W Max: 68"W x 66 Return 36" W or 42" W x 24" D. 
Traditional style with raised molding details, period style hardware

1 PO-1T
Transitional Double 

pedestal desk
Min: 30" D Max: 34" D Min 66" W Max 68" W Transitional style and details, modern 
hardware

1 PO-2T
Transitional Single 
pedestal desk w/ 

return option

Min: 30" D Max: 34" D Min 66" W Max 68" W Transitional style and details, modern 
hardware

1 RE-1
Reception station w/ 
transaction counter

60" x 60" nominal dimensions, Traditional style with raised molding details, period 
style hardware

1 RE-4
Reception station 
double pedestal 

desk

Min: 30" D Max: 34" D Min 66" W Max 68" W Traditional style with raised molding 
details, period style hardware

1 RE-1T
Reception w/ 

transaction counter
60" x 60" transitional style

1 WS-1
Curved worksurface 

w/ sliding door 
storage

60" x 66", tile/segmented panel based solution

It is estimated that a total of (514) private office and workstation typicals will be ordered on Phase 1. Breakdown for 
the quantity of each typical type is not yet available.

PRIVATE OFFICE, RECEPTION DESK & WORKSTATION TYPICALS:



Offer Name___________________ PHASE 1                 
RFP OAM16038S

Attachment J.1 Pricing
GS11P13MKC0022

(rev6-22-2016)

Offeror is responsible for confirming counts/quantities of all furniture parts and components

Qty 
Phase 1

 Unit 
Price         

Phase 1 
Tag Item Description

      

1 WS-5 Intern station 48" - 66" W x 24" D, tile/segmented panel based solution

1 WS-6
Sit-to-Stand Desk 

with return storage

REVISED:  66"W x 24"D Sit-to-stand desk with 60"W x +/- 20"D open bookcase and 
box/file combination return storage. Box/file to have cushion top (Grade 3 fabric or 
equivalent). Laminate surfaces and storage with PVC or self-edge.

1 BC-3 3 shelves
Min: 30"W Max 36"W, Traditional Style. NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be 
specified

1 BC-5 5 shelves
 Min: 30"W Max 36"W, Traditional Style.  NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be 
specified

1 HTO
Highback organizer 

w/ wood doors

Hutch to span length of the desk and return/desk should be interchangeable. 
Traditional style with period style hardware  NOTE: Either a Highback with doors or 
a Highback bookcase will be specified

1 HTS 
Highback organizer 

w/out doors

 Hutch to span length of the desk and return/desk should be interchangeable. 
Traditional style with period style hardware. NOTE: Either a Highback with doors or 
a Highback bookcase will be specified

1 T-1A Conference table
36" D, Traditional style with raised molding details, period style hardware. NOTE: 
Either a 36" or a 42"Table will be specified

1 T-1B Conference table
42" D, Traditional style with raised molding details, period style hardware. NOTE: 
Either a 36" or a 42"Table will be specified

1 T-2 End table 24" x 24"

ACCESSORIES: For pricing purposes price as single units.
Quantities for each accessory are TBD, and will be determined during the design phase.   



Offer Name___________________ PHASE 1                 
RFP OAM16038S

Attachment J.1 Pricing
GS11P13MKC0022

(rev6-22-2016)

Offeror is responsible for confirming counts/quantities of all furniture parts and components

Qty 
Phase 1

 Unit 
Price         

Phase 1 
Tag Item Description

      

1 HTO-T
Highback organizer 

w/ doors

Transitional style and details, modern hardware. Hutch to span length of desk and 
return/desk to be interchangeable. Design details to include reveals, base and panel 
inset options. No systems furniture panels.  NOTE: Either a HTO or an HTS will be 
specified

1 HTS-T
Highback organizer 

w/ out doors

Transitional style and details, modern hardware. Hutch to span length of desk and 
return/desk to be interchangeable. Design details to include reveals, base and panel 
inset options. No systems furniture panels.   

1 C-1 Task Chair
Chair seat width shall be a minimum of 20”. Backrest shall have a minimum width of 
20” and should not interfere with the user’s movement. Armrest height to be 
adjustable by user. Chairs shall have a metal 5 star base.

1 BC-5T Bookcase
Min: 30"W Max 36"W and 5-shelf, Transitional style and details, modern hardware.  
NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be specified

1 BC-3T Bookcase
Min: 30"W Max 36"W and 3-shelf, Transitional style and details, modern hardware.  
NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be specified

1 CM-1 Chair Mat 36" W x 48" chair mat made suitable for low to medium pile carpet.

1 CF-2
Conf.Table Seats 14 

(chairs shown for 
reference)

54" x 144" Transitional Style conference table, panel leg with integrated, internal 
wire management for power and data, include two table top access, recessed utility 
box with a hinged door with 2 power outlets and 1 data and 1 AV outlets within, 
finished flushed with the top of the table.. Power and data utility boxes shall be 
distrubuted evenly the length of the table and aligned on the table centerline.

1 CF-3
Conf.Table Seats 16 

(chairs shown for 
reference)

54" x 192" Transitional Style conference table, panel leg with integrated, internal 
wire management for power and data, include three table top access, recessed 
utility box with a hinged door with 2 power outlets and 1 data and 1 AV outlets 
within, finished flushed with the top of the table.. Power and data utility boxes shall 
be distrubuted evenly the length of the table and aligned on the table centerline.

NOTES:
1.) 1 additional reception and 2 additional workstations in LRC private office

3.) Highback organizers assumed at all PO types.  No credenzas.

2.) Traditional casegoods in Member COS and Reception only, plus Library and Sgt at Arms (no straight modular option).  All other 
private offices and receptions get transitional. No overhead storage at reception. No credenzas.



Offer Name___________________ PHASE 2                 
RFP OAM16038S

Attachment J.1 Pricing
GS11P13MKC0022

(rev6-22-2016)

Offeror is responsible for confirming counts/quantities of all furniture parts and components

Qty 
Phase 2

 Unit 
Price         

Phase 2 
Tag Item Description

1 PO-1
Double pedestal 

desk 
Min: 30" D Max: 34"D, Min 66"W Max: 68"W x 66", Traditional style with raised 
molding details, period style hardware

1 PO-2
Single pedestal desk 

w/ return
Min: 30" D Max: 34"D, Min 66"W Max: 68"W x 66 Return 36" W or 42" W x 24" D. 
Traditional style with raised molding details, period style hardware

1 PO-1T
Transitional Double 

pedestal desk
Min: 30" D Max: 34" D Min 66" W Max 68" W Transitional style and details, modern 
hardware

1 PO-2T
Transitional Single 
pedestal desk w/ 

return option

Min: 30" D Max: 34" D Min 66" W Max 68" W Transitional style and details, modern 
hardware

1 RE-1
Reception station w/ 
transaction counter

60" x 60" nominal dimensions, Traditional style with raised molding details, period 
style hardware

1 RE-4
Reception station 
double pedestal 

desk

Min: 30" D Max: 34" D Min 66" W Max 68" W Traditional style with raised molding 
details, period style hardware

1 RE-1T
Reception w/ 

transaction counter
60" x 60" transitional style

1 WS-1
Curved worksurface 

w/ sliding door 
storage

60" x 66", tile/segmented panel based solution

PRIVATE OFFICE, RECEPTION DESK & WORKSTATION TYPICALS:
It is estimated that a total of (397) private office and workstation typicals will be ordered on Phase 2. Breakdown for 
the quantity of each typical type is not yet available.



Offer Name___________________ PHASE 2                 
RFP OAM16038S

Attachment J.1 Pricing
GS11P13MKC0022

(rev6-22-2016)

Offeror is responsible for confirming counts/quantities of all furniture parts and components

Qty 
Phase 2

 Unit 
Price         

Phase 2 
Tag Item Description

      

1 WS-5 Intern station 48" - 66" W x 24" D, tile/segmented panel based solution

1 WS-6
Sit-to-Stand Desk 

with return storage

REVISED: 66"W x 24"D Sit-to-stand desk with 60"W x +/- 20"D open bookcase and 
box/file combination return storage. Box/file to have cushion top (Grade 3 fabric or 
equivalent). Laminate surfaces and storage with PVC or self-edge.

1 BC-3 3 shelves
Min: 30"W Max 36"W, Traditional Style. NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be 
specified

1 BC-5 5 shelves
 Min: 30"W Max 36"W, Traditional Style.  NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be 
specified

1 HTO
Highback organizer 

w/ wood doors

Hutch to span length of the desk and return/desk should be interchangeable. 
Traditional style with period style hardware  NOTE: Either a Highback with doors or 
a Highback bookcase will be specified

1 HTS 
Highback organizer 

w/out doors

 Hutch to span length of the desk and return/desk should be interchangeable. 
Traditional style with period style hardware. NOTE: Either a Highback with doors or 
a Highback bookcase will be specified

1 T-1A Conference table
36" D, Traditional style with raised molding details, period style hardware. NOTE: 
Either a 36" or a 42"Table will be specified

1 T-1B Conference table
42" D, Traditional style with raised molding details, period style hardware. NOTE: 
Either a 36" or a 42"Table will be specified

1 T-2 End table 24" x 24"

ACCESSORIES: For pricing purposes price as single units.
Quantities for each accessory are TBD, and will be determined during the design phase.



Offer Name___________________ PHASE 2                 
RFP OAM16038S

Attachment J.1 Pricing
GS11P13MKC0022

(rev6-22-2016)

Offeror is responsible for confirming counts/quantities of all furniture parts and components

Qty 
Phase 2

 Unit 
Price         

Phase 2 
Tag Item Description

      

1 HTO-T
Highback organizer 

w/ doors

Transitional style and details, modern hardware. Hutch to span length of desk and 
return/desk to be interchangeable. Design details to include reveals, base and panel 
inset options. No systems furniture panels.  NOTE: Either a HTO or an HTS will be 
specified

1 HTS-T
Highback organizer 

w/ out doors

Transitional style and details, modern hardware. Hutch to span length of desk and 
return/desk to be interchangeable. Design details to include reveals, base and panel 
inset options. No systems furniture panels.   

1 C-1 Task Chair
Chair seat width shall be a minimum of 20”. Backrest shall have a minimum width of 
20” and should not interfere with the user’s movement. Armrest height to be 
adjustable by user. Chairs shall have a metal 5 star base.

1 BC-5T Bookcase
Min: 30"W Max 36"W and 5-shelf, Transitional style and details, modern hardware.  
NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be specified

1 BC-3T Bookcase
Min: 30"W Max 36"W and 3-shelf, Transitional style and details, modern hardware.  
NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be specified

1 CM-1 Chair Mat 36" W x 48" chair mat made suitable for low to medium pile carpet.

1 CF-2
Conf.Table Seats 14 

(chairs shown for 
reference)

54" x 144" Transitional Style conference table, panel leg with integrated, internal 
wire management for power and data, include two table top access, recessed utility 
box with a hinged door with 2 power outlets and 1 data and 1 AV outlets within, 
finished flushed with the top of the table.. Power and data utility boxes shall be 
distrubuted evenly the length of the table and aligned on the table centerline.

1 CF-3
Conf.Table Seats 16 

(chairs shown for 
reference)

54" x 192" Transitional Style conference table, panel leg with integrated, internal 
wire management for power and data, include three table top access, recessed 
utility box with a hinged door with 2 power outlets and 1 data and 1 AV outlets 
within, finished flushed with the top of the table.. Power and data utility boxes shall 
be distrubuted evenly the length of the table and aligned on the table centerline.

NOTES:
1.) 1 additional reception and 2 additional workstations in LRC private office

3.) Highback organizers assumed at all PO types.  No credenzas.

2.) Traditional casegoods in Member COS and Reception only, plus Library and Sgt at Arms (no straight modular option).  All other 
private offices and receptions get transitional. No overhead storage at reception. No credenzas.



Offer Name___________________ PHASE 3                 
RFP OAM16038S

Attachment J.1 Pricing
GS11P13MKC0022

(rev6-22-2016)

Offeror is responsible for confirming counts/quantities of all furniture parts and components

Qty 
Phase 3

 Unit 
Price         

Phase 3 
Tag Item Description

1 PO-1
Double pedestal 

desk 
Min: 30" D Max: 34"D, Min 66"W Max: 68"W x 66", Traditional style with raised 
molding details, period style hardware

1 PO-2
Single pedestal desk 

w/ return
Min: 30" D Max: 34"D, Min 66"W Max: 68"W x 66 Return 36" W or 42" W x 24" D. 
Traditional style with raised molding details, period style hardware

1 PO-1T
Transitional Double 

pedestal desk
Min: 30" D Max: 34" D Min 66" W Max 68" W Transitional style and details, modern 
hardware

1 PO-2T
Transitional Single 
pedestal desk w/ 

return option

Min: 30" D Max: 34" D Min 66" W Max 68" W Transitional style and details, modern 
hardware

1 RE-1
Reception station w/ 
transaction counter

60" x 60" nominal dimensions, Traditional style with raised molding details, period 
style hardware

1 RE-4
Reception station 
double pedestal 

desk

Min: 30" D Max: 34" D Min 66" W Max 68" W Traditional style with raised molding 
details, period style hardware

1 RE-1T
Reception w/ 

transaction counter
60" x 60" transitional style

1 WS-1
Curved worksurface 

w/ sliding door 
storage

60" x 66", tile/segmented panel based solution

PRIVATE OFFICE & WORKSTATION TYPICALS:
It is estimated that a total of (533) private office and workstation typicals will be ordered on Phase 3. Breakdown for 
the quantity of each typical type is not yet available.



Offer Name___________________ PHASE 3                 
RFP OAM16038S

Attachment J.1 Pricing
GS11P13MKC0022

(rev6-22-2016)

Offeror is responsible for confirming counts/quantities of all furniture parts and components

Qty 
Phase 3

 Unit 
Price         

Phase 3 
Tag Item Description

    

1 WS-5 Intern station 48" - 66" W x 24" D, tile/segmented panel based solution

1 WS-6
Sit-to-Stand Desk 

with return storage

REVISED: 66"W x 24"D Sit-to-stand desk with 60"W x +/- 20"D open bookcase and 
box/file combination return storage. Box/file to have cushion top (Grade 3 fabric or 
equivalent). Laminate surfaces and storage with PVC or self-edge.

1 BC-3 3 shelves
Min: 30"W Max 36"W, Traditional Style. NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be 
specified

1 BC-5 5 shelves
 Min: 30"W Max 36"W, Traditional Style.  NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be 
specified

1 HTO
Highback organizer 

w/ wood doors

Hutch to span length of the desk and return/desk should be interchangeable. 
Traditional style with period style hardware  NOTE: Either a Highback with doors or 
a Highback bookcase will be specified

1 HTS 
Highback organizer 

w/out doors

 Hutch to span length of the desk and return/desk should be interchangeable. 
Traditional style with period style hardware. NOTE: Either a Highback with doors or 
a Highback bookcase will be specified

1 T-1A Conference table
36" D, Traditional style with raised molding details, period style hardware. NOTE: 
Either a 36" or a 42"Table will be specified

1 T-1B Conference table
42" D, Traditional style with raised molding details, period style hardware. NOTE: 
Either a 36" or a 42"Table will be specified

1 T-2 End table 24" x 24"

ACCESSORIES: For pricing purposes price as single units.
Quantities for each accessory are TBD, and will be determined during the design phase.



Offer Name___________________ PHASE 3                 
RFP OAM16038S

Attachment J.1 Pricing
GS11P13MKC0022

(rev6-22-2016)

Offeror is responsible for confirming counts/quantities of all furniture parts and components

Qty 
Phase 3

 Unit 
Price         

Phase 3 
Tag Item Description

    

1 HTO-T
Highback organizer 

w/ doors

Transitional style and details, modern hardware. Hutch to span length of desk and 
return/desk to be interchangeable. Design details to include reveals, base and panel 
inset options. No systems furniture panels.  NOTE: Either a HTO or an HTS will be 
specified

1 HTS-T
Highback organizer 

w/ out doors

Transitional style and details, modern hardware. Hutch to span length of desk and 
return/desk to be interchangeable. Design details to include reveals, base and panel 
inset options. No systems furniture panels.   

1 C-1 Task Chair
Chair seat width shall be a minimum of 20”. Backrest shall have a minimum width of 
20” and should not interfere with the user’s movement. Armrest height to be 
adjustable by user. Chairs shall have a metal 5 star base.

1 BC-5T Bookcase
Min: 30"W Max 36"W and 5-shelf, Transitional style and details, modern hardware.  
NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be specified

1 BC-3T Bookcase
Min: 30"W Max 36"W and 3-shelf, Transitional style and details, modern hardware.  
NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be specified

1 CM-1 Chair Mat 36" W x 48" chair mat made suitable for low to medium pile carpet.

1 CF-2
Conf.Table Seats 14 

(chairs shown for 
reference)

54" x 144" Transitional Style conference table, panel leg with integrated, internal 
wire management for power and data, include two table top access, recessed utility 
box with a hinged door with 2 power outlets and 1 data and 1 AV outlets within, 
finished flushed with the top of the table.. Power and data utility boxes shall be 
distrubuted evenly the length of the table and aligned on the table centerline.

1 CF-3
Conf.Table Seats 16 

(chairs shown for 
reference)

54" x 192" Transitional Style conference table, panel leg with integrated, internal 
wire management for power and data, include three table top access, recessed 
utility box with a hinged door with 2 power outlets and 1 data and 1 AV outlets 
within, finished flushed with the top of the table.. Power and data utility boxes shall 
be distrubuted evenly the length of the table and aligned on the table centerline.

NOTES:
1.) 1 additional reception and 2 additional workstations in LRC private office

3.) Highback organizers assumed at all PO types.  No credenzas.

2.) Traditional casegoods in Member COS and Reception only, plus Library and Sgt at Arms (no straight modular option).  All other 
private offices and receptions get transitional. No overhead storage at reception. No credenzas.



Offer Name___________________ PHASE 4                 
RFP OAM16038S

Attachment J.1 Pricing
GS11P13MKC0022

(rev6-22-2016)

Offeror is responsible for confirming counts/quantities of all furniture parts and components

Qty 
Phase 4

 Unit 
Price         

Phase 4 
Tag Item Description

1 PO-1
Double pedestal 

desk 
Min: 30" D Max: 34"D, Min 66"W Max: 68"W x 66", Traditional style with raised 
molding details, period style hardware

1 PO-2
Single pedestal desk 

w/ return
Min: 30" D Max: 34"D, Min 66"W Max: 68"W x 66 Return 36" W or 42" W x 24" D. 
Traditional style with raised molding details, period style hardware

1 PO-1T
Transitional Double 

pedestal desk
Min: 30" D Max: 34" D Min 66" W Max 68" W Transitional style and details, modern 
hardware

1 PO-2T
Transitional Single 
pedestal desk w/ 

return option

Min: 30" D Max: 34" D Min 66" W Max 68" W Transitional style and details, modern 
hardware

1 RE-1
Reception station w/ 
transaction counter

60" x 60" nominal dimensions, Traditional style with raised molding details, period 
style hardware

1 RE-4
Reception station 
double pedestal 

desk

Min: 30" D Max: 34" D Min 66" W Max 68" W Traditional style with raised molding 
details, period style hardware

1 RE-1T
Reception w/ 

transaction counter
60" x 60" transitional style

1 WS-1
Curved worksurface 

w/ sliding door 
storage

60" x 66", tile/segmented panel based solution

PRIVATE OFFICE & WORKSTATION TYPICALS:
It is estimated that a total of (407) private office and workstation typicals will be ordered on Phase 4. Breakdown for 
the quantity of each typical type is not yet available.



Offer Name___________________ PHASE 4                 
RFP OAM16038S

Attachment J.1 Pricing
GS11P13MKC0022

(rev6-22-2016)

Offeror is responsible for confirming counts/quantities of all furniture parts and components

Qty 
Phase 4

 Unit 
Price         

Phase 4 
Tag Item Description

    

1 WS-5 Intern station 48" - 66" W x 24" D, tile/segmented panel based solution

1 WS-6
Sit-to-Stand Desk 

with return storage

REVISED: 66"W x 24"D Sit-to-stand desk with 60"W x +/- 20"D open bookcase and 
box/file combination return storage. Box/file to have cushion top (Grade 3 fabric or 
equivalent). Laminate surfaces and storage with PVC or self-edge.

1 BC-3 3 shelves
Min: 30"W Max 36"W, Traditional Style. NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be 
specified

1 BC-5 5 shelves
 Min: 30"W Max 36"W, Traditional Style.  NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be 
specified

1 HTO
Highback organizer 

w/ wood doors

Hutch to span length of the desk and return/desk should be interchangeable. 
Traditional style with period style hardware  NOTE: Either a Highback with doors or 
a Highback bookcase will be specified

1 HTS 
Highback organizer 

w/out doors

 Hutch to span length of the desk and return/desk should be interchangeable. 
Traditional style with period style hardware. NOTE: Either a Highback with doors or 
a Highback bookcase will be specified

1 T-1A Conference table
36" D, Traditional style with raised molding details, period style hardware. NOTE: 
Either a 36" or a 42"Table will be specified

1 T-1B Conference table
42" D, Traditional style with raised molding details, period style hardware. NOTE: 
Either a 36" or a 42"Table will be specified

1 T-2 End table 24" x 24"

ACCESSORIES: For pricing purposes price as single units.
Quantities for each accessory are TBD, and will be determined during the design phase.



Offer Name___________________ PHASE 4                 
RFP OAM16038S

Attachment J.1 Pricing
GS11P13MKC0022

(rev6-22-2016)

Offeror is responsible for confirming counts/quantities of all furniture parts and components

Qty 
Phase 4

 Unit 
Price         

Phase 4 
Tag Item Description

    

1 HTO-T
Highback organizer 

w/ doors

Transitional style and details, modern hardware. Hutch to span length of desk and 
return/desk to be interchangeable. Design details to include reveals, base and panel 
inset options. No systems furniture panels.  NOTE: Either a HTO or an HTS will be 
specified

1 HTS-T
Highback organizer 

w/ out doors

Transitional style and details, modern hardware. Hutch to span length of desk and 
return/desk to be interchangeable. Design details to include reveals, base and panel 
inset options. No systems furniture panels.   

1 C-1 Task Chair
Chair seat width shall be a minimum of 20”. Backrest shall have a minimum width of 
20” and should not interfere with the user’s movement. Armrest height to be 
adjustable by user. Chairs shall have a metal 5 star base.

1 BC-5T Bookcase
Min: 30"W Max 36"W and 5-shelf, Transitional style and details, modern hardware.  
NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be specified

1 BC-3T Bookcase
Min: 30"W Max 36"W and 3-shelf, Transitional style and details, modern hardware.  
NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be specified

1 CM-1 Chair Mat 36" W x 48" chair mat made suitable for low to medium pile carpet.

1 CF-2
Conf.Table Seats 14 

(chairs shown for 
reference)

54" x 144" Transitional Style conference table, panel leg with integrated, internal 
wire management for power and data, include two table top access, recessed utility 
box with a hinged door with 2 power outlets and 1 data and 1 AV outlets within, 
finished flushed with the top of the table.. Power and data utility boxes shall be 
distrubuted evenly the length of the table and aligned on the table centerline.

1 CF-3
Conf.Table Seats 16 

(chairs shown for 
reference)

54" x 192" Transitional Style conference table, panel leg with integrated, internal 
wire management for power and data, include three table top access, recessed 
utility box with a hinged door with 2 power outlets and 1 data and 1 AV outlets 
within, finished flushed with the top of the table.. Power and data utility boxes shall 
be distrubuted evenly the length of the table and aligned on the table centerline.

NOTES:
1.) 1 additional reception and 2 additional workstations in LRC private office

3.) Highback organizers assumed at all PO types.  No credenzas.

2.) Traditional casegoods in Member COS and Reception only, plus Library and Sgt at Arms (no straight modular option).  All other 
private offices and receptions get transitional. No overhead storage at reception. No credenzas.



Offer Name___________________         Attachment J.1 Pricing                       
RFP OAM16038S

ALL PHASES

GS11P13MKC0022

Offeror is responsible for confirming counts/quantities of all furniture parts components

Phase 1 
Cost (from 

tab)

 Phase 2 
Cost (from 

tab) 

 Phase 3 
Cost (from 

tab) 

 Phase 4 
Cost (from 

tab) 
Tag Item Description

PO-1
Double pedestal 

desk 
Min: 30" D Max: 34"D, Min 66"W Max: 68"W x 66", Traditional style with raised 
molding details, period style hardware

PO-2
Single pedestal desk 

w/ return
Min: 30" D Max: 34"D, Min 66"W Max: 68"W x 66 Return 36" W or 42" W x 24" D. 
Traditional style with raised molding details, period style hardware

PO-1T
Transitional Double 

pedestal desk
Min: 30" D Max: 34" D Min 66" W Max 68" W Transitional style and details, modern 
hardware

PO-2T
Transitional Single 
pedestal desk w/ 

return option

Min: 30" D Max: 34" D Min 66" W Max 68" W Transitional style and details, modern 
hardware

RE-1
Reception station w/ 
transaction counter

60" x 60" nominal dimensions, Traditional style with raised molding details, period 
style hardware

RE-4
Reception station 
double pedestal 

desk

Min: 30" D Max: 34" D Min 66" W Max 68" W Traditional style with raised molding 
details, period style hardware

RE-1T
Reception w/ 

transaction counter
60" x 60" transitional style

WS-1
Curved worksurface 

w/ sliding door 
storage

60" x 66", tile/segmented panel based solution

WS-5 Intern station 48" - 66" W x 24" D, tile/segmented panel based solution

WS-6
Sit-to-Stand Desk 

with return storage

REVISED: 66"W x 24"D Sit-to-stand desk with 60"W x +/- 20"D open bookcase and 
box/file combination return storage. Box/file to have cushion top (Grade 3 fabric or 
equivalent). Laminate surfaces and storage with PVC or self-edge.

BC-3
3 Shelves Min: 30"W Max 36"W, Traditional Style. NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be 

specified for a total of 31 BC's in Phase 1

PRIVATE OFFICE & WORKSTATION TYPICALS:

ACCESSORIES: For pricing purposes price as single units.

Breakdown for the quantity of each typical type is not yet 

Quantities for each accessory are TBD, and will be determined 
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ALL PHASES
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Offeror is responsible for confirming counts/quantities of all furniture parts components

Phase 1 
Cost (from 

tab)

 Phase 2 
Cost (from 

tab) 

 Phase 3 
Cost (from 

tab) 

 Phase 4 
Cost (from 

tab) 
Tag Item Description

    

BC-5 5 shelves
 Min: 30"W Max 36"W, Traditional Style.  NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be 
specified for a total of 31 BC's in Phase 1

HTO
Highback organizer 

w/ wood doors

Hutch to span length of the desk and return/desk should be interchangeable. 
Traditional style with period style hardware  NOTE: Either a Highback with doors or 
a Highback bookcase will be specified for a total of 62 HTOs in Phase 1

HTS
Highback organizer 

w/out doors

 Hutch to span length of the desk and return/desk should be interchangeable. 
Traditional style with period style hardware. NOTE: Either a Highback with doors or 
a Highback bookcase will be specified for a total of 62 HTOs in Phase 1

T-1A Conference table
36" D, Traditional style with raised molding details, period style hardware. NOTE: 
Either a 36" or a 42"Table will be specified for a total of 31 Tables in Phase 1

T-1B Conference table
42" D, Traditional style with raised molding details, period style hardware. NOTE: 
Either a 36" or a 42"Table will be specified for a total of 31 Tables in Phase 1

T-2 End table 24" x 24"

HTO-T
Highback organizer 

w/ doors
60"W x 24"D Sit-to-stand desk

HTS-T
Highback organizer 

w/ open shelves

Transitional style and details, modern hardware. Hutch to span length of desk and 
return/desk to be interchangeable. Design details to include reveals, base and panel 
inset options. No systems furniture panels.   

C-1 Task Chair
Chair seat width shall be a minimum of 20”. Backrest shall have a minimum width of 
20” and should not interfere with the user’s movement. Armrest height to be 
adjustable by user. Chairs shall have a metal 5 star base.

BC-5T Bookcase
Min: 30"W Max 36"W and 5-shelf, Transitional style and details, modern hardware.  
NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be specified for a total of 20 BC's in Phase 1

BC-3T 3 Shelf Bookcase
Min: 30"W Max 36"W and 3-shelf, Transitional style and details, modern hardware.  
NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be specified for a total of 20 BC's in Phase 1

CM-1 Chair Mat 36" W x 48" chair mat made suitable for low to medium pile carpet.
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Phase 1 
Cost (from 

tab)

 Phase 2 
Cost (from 

tab) 

 Phase 3 
Cost (from 

tab) 

 Phase 4 
Cost (from 

tab) 
Tag Item Description

    

CF-2
Conf.Table Seats 14 

(chairs shown for 
reference)

54" x 144" Transitional Style conference table, panel leg with integrated, internal 
wire management for power and data, include two table top access, recessed utility 
box with a hinged door with 2 power outlets and 1 data and 1 AV outlets within, 
finished flushed with the top of the table.. Power and data utility boxes shall be 
distrubuted evenly the length of the table and aligned on the table centerline.

CF-3
Conf.Table Seats 16 

(chairs shown for 
reference)

54" x 192" Transitional Style conference table, panel leg with integrated, internal 
wire management for power and data, include three table top access, recessed 
utility box with a hinged door with 2 power outlets and 1 data and 1 AV outlets 
within, finished flushed with the top of the table.. Power and data utility boxes shall 
be distrubuted evenly the length of the table and aligned on the table centerline.

NOTES:
1.) 1 additional reception and 2 additional workstations in LRC private office

3.) Highback organizers assumed at all PO types.  No credenzas.

2.) Traditional casegoods in Member COS and Reception only, plus Library and Sgt at Arms (no straight modular option).  All other private offices and receptions get 
transitional. No overhead storage at reception. No credenzas.



Design, Installation and Time Materials Pricing

Cost Phase 1 Cost Phase 2 Cost Phase 3 Cost Phase 4 Option 1 Option 2
Item Description

1 Layout Design For Member Office

2 Installation Cost Per Member Office 

Hourly Rate 
Phase  1

Hourly Rate 
Phase  2

Hourly Rate 
Phase  3

Hourly Rate 
Phase  4

Hourly Rate 
Option 1

Hourly Rate 
Option 2

3

Time and Material Cost for 
Reconfiguration of Workstations after 
initial installation. If required, this will 
be done on a separate Purchase Order. 
Purpose here is to establish the hourly 
rate for these services if required. 

Note: There is only one freight elevator available
to use to transport the product to the floors.   
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 Option 
1 Pricing 

Option      
2      

Pricing
Tag Item Description

PO-1
Double pedestal 

desk 
Min: 30" D Max: 34"D, Min 66"W Max: 68"W x 66", Traditional style with raised 
molding details, period style hardware

 PO-2
Single pedestal desk 

w/ return
Min: 30" D Max: 34"D, Min 66"W Max: 68"W x 66 Return 36" W or 42" W x 24" D. 
Traditional style with raised molding details, period style hardware

PO-1T
Transitional Double 

pedestal desk
Min: 30" D Max: 34" D Min 66" W Max 68" W Transitional style with raised molding 
details, period style hardware

PO-2T
Transitional Single 
pedestal desk w/ 

return option

Min: 30" D Max: 34" D Min 66" W Max 68" W Transitional style with raised molding 
details, period style hardware

WS-1
Curved worksurface 

w/ sliding door 
storage

60" x 66", tile/segmented panel based solution

WS-5 Intern station 48" - 66" W x 24" D, tile/segmented panel based solution

WS-6
Sit-to-Stand Desk 

with return storage

REVISED: 66"W x 24"D Sit-to-stand desk with 60"W x +/- 20"D open bookcase and 
box/file combination return storage. Box/file to have cushion top (Grade 3 fabric or 
equivalent). Laminate surfaces and storage with PVC or self-edge.

BC-3 3 shelves
Min: 30"W Max 36"W and 3 shelves, Traditional Style. NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 
Shelf will be specified

ACCESSORIES: For pricing purposes price as single units.

PRIVATE OFFICE & WORKSTATION TYPICALS:
Breakdown for the quantity of each typical type is not yet available.  

Quantities for each accessory are TBD, and will be determined during the design phase.
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 Option 
1 Pricing 

Option      
2      

Pricing
Tag Item Description

    

 BC-5 5 shelves
 Min: 30"W Max 36"W and 5 shelves, Traditional Style.  NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 
Shelf will be specified

HTO
Highback organizer 

w/ wood doors

Hutch to span length of the desk and return/desk should be interchangeable. 
Traditional style with period style hardware  NOTE: Either a Highback with doors or 
a Highback bookcase will be specified

HTS
Highback organizer 

w/out doors

 Hutch to span length of the desk and return/desk should be interchangeable. 
Traditional style with period style hardware. NOTE: Either a Highback with doors or 
a Highback bookcase will be specified 

T-1A Conference table
36" D, Traditional style with raised molding details, period style hardware. NOTE: 
Either a 36" or a 42"Table will be specified for a total of 31 Tables in Phase 1

T-1B Conference table
42" D, Traditional style with raised molding details, period style hardware. NOTE: 
Either a 36" or a 42"Table will be specified for a total of 31 Tables in Phase 1

RE-1
Reception station w/ 
transaction counter

60" x 60" nominal dimensions, Traditional style with raised molding details, period 
style hardware

RE-4
Reception station 
double pedestal 

desk

Min: 30" D Max: 34" D Min 66" W Max 68" W Traditional style with raised molding 
details, period style hardware

T-2 End table 24" x 24"

RE-1T
Reception w/ 

transaction counter
60" x 60", Transitional style and details, modern style hardware. Design details to 
include reveals, base and panel inset options. No systems furniture panels.
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Offeror is responsible for confirming counts/quantities of all furniture parts components

 Option 
1 Pricing 

Option      
2      

Pricing
Tag Item Description

HTO-T
Highback organizer 

w/ doors

Transitional style and details, modern style hardware. Hutch to span length of desk 
and return/desk to be interchangeable. Design details to include reveals, base and 
panel inset options. No systems furniture panels.   NOTE: Either a HTO or an HTS 
will be specified 

HTS-T
Highback organizer 

w/ open shelves

Transitional style and details, modern style hardware. Hutch to span length of desk 
and return/desk to be interchangeable. Design details to include reveals, base and 
panel inset options. No systems furniture panels.   NOTE: Either a HTO or an HTS 
will be specified 

C-1 Task Chair
Chair seat width shall be a minimum of 20”. Backrest shall have a minimum width of 
20” and should not interfere with the user’s movement. Armrest height to be 
adjustable by user. Chairs shall have a metal 5 star base.

BC-5T Bookcase
30" W/36"W  and 5-shelf. Transitional style and details, modern style hardware.   
NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be specified 

BC-3T Bookcase
Min: 30"W Max 36"W, Transitional Style, we should have two size options for the 
bookcases.  NOTE: Either a 3 Shelf or 5 Shelf will be specified 

CM-1 Chair Mat 36" W x 48" chair mat made suitable for low to medium pile carpet.

CF-2
Conf.Table Seats 14 

(chairs shown for 
reference)

54" x 144" Transitional Style conference table, panel leg with integrated, internal 
wire management for power and data, include two table top access, recessed utility 
box with a hinged door with 2 power outlets and 1 data and 1 AV outlets within, 
finished flushed with the top of the table.. Power and data utility boxes shall be 
distrubuted evenly the length of the table and aligned on the table centerline.

CF-3
Conf.Table Seats 16 

(chairs shown for 
reference)

54" x 192" Transitional Style conference table, panel leg with integrated, internal 
wire management for power and data, include three table top access, recessed 
utility box with a hinged door with 2 power outlets and 1 data and 1 AV outlets 
within, finished flushed with the top of the table.. Power and data utility boxes shall 
be distrubuted evenly the length of the table and aligned on the table centerline.



Attachment J.1.A. Traditional Items & Workstations
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Offeror is responsible for confirming counts/quantities of all furniture parts components

Image Tag
TRANSITIONAL ITEMS/WORKSTATIONS

PRIVATE OFFICE, RECEPTION DESK & WORKSTATION TYPICALS:

PO-1T

PO-2T

RE-1T

WS-1

WS-5

WS-6

ACCESSORIES:
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Image Tag

T2

HTO-T

HTS-T

C-1 

BC-5T

BC-3T

CM-1
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Image Tag

CF-2

CF-3
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